

# Correspondence Tracking User Manual

v2.2.1 September 2023

## Correspondence 2.2.1 Correspondence Tracking User Manual

## Notice of Rights

Copyright © 2023, AINS, LLC d/b/a OPEXUS. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without prior written permission of the publisher: AINS, LLC. For information on obtaining permission for reprints and excerpts, contact info@opexustech.com.

Additionally, all copyrights, confidential information, patents, design rights and all other intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature contained herein are, and shall remain, the sole and exclusive property of the publisher.

## Notice of Liability

The information in this publication is believed to be accurate and reliable. However, the information is distributed by the publisher (AINS, LLC.) on an "As Is" basis without warranty for its use, or for any infringements of patents or other rights of third parties resulting from its use.

While every precaution has been taken in the preparation of this publication, neither the author (or authors) nor the publisher will have any liability to any person or entity with respect to any loss or damage caused or alleged to be caused, directly or indirectly, by the information contained in this publication or by the computer software and hardware products described in it.

## Notice of Trademarks

The publisher's company name, company logo, company patents, and company proprietary products are trademarks or registered trademarks of the publisher: AINS, LLC. All other trademarks or registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

## Non-Disclosure Statement

This document's contents are confidential and proprietary to AINS, LLC. This document cannot be released publicly or outside the purchasing agency without prior written permission from AINS, LLC.

Images in this manual are used as examples and may contain data and versioning that may not be consistent with your version of the application or information in your environment.

## Additional Notice

Information in this documentation is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of AINS, LLC.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, if this document was produced as a Deliverable or other work for hire under a contract on behalf of a U.S. Government end user, the terms and conditions of that contract shall apply in the event of a conflict.

# Contents

U	sing Th	nis Manual	6
1	Cori	respondence Tracking Overview	7
	1.1	About Correspondence Tracking	7
	1.2	Accessing Correspondence Tracking	7
2	Gett	ting Started	8
	2.1	Correspondence Tracking Home Screen	8
	2.2	Home Screen Features	9
	2.3	Workflow Types	9
	2.4	Create New Correspondence Case Folders	
	2.5	Manage Correspondents	11
	2.5.2	1 Search Correspondents	11
	2.5.2	2 Create New Correspondent	
3	Cori	respondence Tracking Case Folder Interface	15
	3.1	Correspondence Tab	15
	3.2	Attachments Tab	
	3.2.2	1 Attachment Actions	
	3.2.2	2 Upload a Document	
	3.3	Assignments Tab	17
	3.3.2	1 Assignments Tab Interface	17
	3.3.2	2 Continue the Workflow	
	3.4	Journal Entries Tab	20
	3.5	Routing List Tab (If Enabled)	21
	3.5.2	1 Add Activity	22
	3.5.2	2 Complete Routing List Task	22
	3.6	Project Team Tab (If Enabled)	23
	3.6.2	1 Add User to Correspondence Folder	24

#### Contents

	3.6.2	Remove a User/Group	25
4	Corre	espondence Tracking Processes	27
2	1.1	Advance the Correspondence Tracking Workflow	27
	4.1.1	Start Workflow	27
	4.1.2	Continue/Complete Task	29
	4.1.3	Delegate Task	32
	4.1.4	Complete and Create Task	34
	4.1.5	Clearance Actions	
2	1.2	Assign Task Interface	37
	4.2.1	Basic Tab Functionality	
	4.2.2	Add New Task Functionality	40
	4.2.3	Task Instruction Tab	42
	4.2.4	Email Notification Tab	43
	4.2.5	Comment/Journal Entry Tab	44
2	1.3	Closing a Correspondence Folder	44
	4.3.1	Closing with Documents in Attachments Tab	45
	4.3.2	Closing Without Documents in the Attachments Tab	47
5	Repo	rts	50
5	5.1	Reports Interface	50
5	5.2	Run a Report	51
	5.2.1	Print/Print All	53
	5.2.2	Export (Save or Email)	54
5	5.3	Create a Custom Report	55
5	5.4	Scheduled Reports	57
	5.4.1	Scheduled Reports Interface	57
	5.4.2	Create New Scheduled Report	58
	5.4.3	View/Clear Schedule Log	61
[	5.5	Actions	61

#### Contents

5.5	.1 Edit Report	62
5.5	.2 Share Report Template	62
5.5	.3 Add Report to Favorites	64
6 eC/	ASE Search Capabilities	65
6.1	Quick Search	65
6.2	Search Correspondences	66
6.3	Full Text Search	67
6.4	Date Criteria Search	67

# **Using This Manual**

The following formatting conventions are used in this manual to highlight important information:

- *Italicized* text indicates a location, for example a particular *Folder*, *Tab*, or *Window*.
- **Bold** text indicates a specific user action, such as clicking a **button**.
- Red text and this symbol (!!) are used in Notes to bring attention to crucial information.

# 1 Correspondence Tracking Overview

# 1.1 About Correspondence Tracking

The Correspondence Tracking application is built on the core eCASE case management platform. eCASE is a flexible configuration-based platform with specific task-driven applications built on top. The Correspondence Tracking application has been designed to cater to your frequent correspondence needs.

The eCASE Correspondence Tracking application is used to initiate, maintain, manage, and close cases pertaining to organizational correspondence. The application also serves as an archive for closed cases.

# 1.2 Accessing Correspondence Tracking

Log in to eCASE using the link provided by your system administrator. A sample log in screen is shown below:

Username:
Password:
Sign In

Enter your Username and Password in the corresponding fields, and click Sign In.

(!!) Note: If your organization has enabled Single Sign On (SSO) Functionality, you are not prompted to enter your log in credentials, and the application will load automatically.

# 2 Getting Started

# 2.1 Correspondence Tracking Home Screen

The eCASE Correspondence Tracking User Interface (UI) is captured below. The eCASE Home *Page* is the first page that appears after you sign into the application.

e(	CASE <sup>°</sup> Corresp	oondence Tracking		Contacts -		Q III * A * ?	
B	Main Menu	Quick Links					
		Total Tasks in Inbox				118	
B	Correspondents	Tasks Arrived Today				0	
-		Tasks Due Today				0	
	Reports	Tasks Overdue				106	
	Mass Mailing	FYI Copies				1	
	mass manning	My Correspondences				139	
÷	Settings						
		Open Correspond	ence Correspondence Type	Case Type	Task Name	Task Assigned Date	Task Due Date
		2021-WHC-00121	Action Information	Correspondence(Workflow)	D. Agency Clearance	1/4/2022 3:55:52 PM	1/19/2022 3:55:52 PM
		2021-WHC-00120	Action Information	Correspondence(Workflow)	A. Direct Correspondence	12/14/2021 2:17:15 PM	12/29/2021 2:17:15 PM
		2021-WHC-00119	Action Information	Correspondence(Workflow)	C. Directorate Clearance	12/14/2021 2:15:29 PM	
		2021-WHC-00118	Action Information	Correspondence(Workflow)	A. Direct Correspondence	12/9/2021 2:32:46 PM	12/24/2021 2:32:46 PM
		2021-WHC-00117	Action Information	Correspondence(Workflow)	B. Draft Response	12/9/2021 1:03:42 PM	12/24/2021 1:03:42 PM
	Powered By eCase 10.6	M 4 1 2 3	4 5 6 7 8 9 10				216 items in 44 pages

The **(A)** Application Title and eCASE Logo are present in every page in the application, and clicking the logo returns you to this home page.

The **(B)** *Launch Pad* is used to open quick menus for: Main Menu, Inbox, Correspondents, Reports, and some features available only to administrators.

The **(C)** *Dashboard* is the center portion of the homepage, and it contains the workspace, which changes depending upon the page and actions selected.

The **(D)** *Quick Search Bar* allows you to complete searches in the application for Contacts, Documents, etc. For additional information regarding searching eCASE, consult the eCASE Search Capabilities subsection. The Quick Search Bar is adjacent to the *Application Selector*, *Username drop-down list*, and *Help menu*.

For additional information regarding these features, consult the Home Screen Features section.

### (!!) Notes:

• In eCASE Correspondence, Contacts are managed from the Correspondents Launch Pad option.

• Dashboards present on the Landing Page can be customized and managed based on user role. Select desired landing page widgets by clicking Preferences in the Username drop-down list.

# 2.2 Home Screen Features

See the table below for additional information regarding features on the eCASE Home Screen.

Feature	Description
Quick Search Bar	Use the Query Type drop-down list and the free text field to execute quick searches of data in the application.
Application Selector	Click this widget to show all of your eCASE applications and select an app logo to navigate to that application.
User Name Drop-down Menu	Click to view your user information. There are also options to edit your user preferences and sign out of the application.
Help Menu ? -	Expand this drop-down menu to view help manuals, view the error log, or contact customer support.

(!!) Note: For additional information about the eCASE UI, please consult the eCASE Online Help manual.

# 2.3 Workflow Types

The Correspondence Tracking application can be configured to use a single or variety of workflow routing methods. There are 3 options built into the platform as defined below. The available correspondence types depend on your agency's specific application configuration.

#### **Getting Started**

Туре	Description
Ad Hoc	The Ad-Hoc workflow is a user-driven process that can be configured to list pre-defined workflow activities along with default expected turnaround days to monitor accountability, while allowing you to choose the next activity and to assign the activity to a user, group, or group queue. This type of workflow is very flexible.
Routing	The Routing workflow type allows you to predefine the routing path for each individual folder. A routing template can also be created to allow you to predefine routing paths for later reuse. Using the routing workflow takes the task assignment out of the assigned
	user's hands and upon "Continuation" of the workflow, the next task will be initiated to the user(s)/group(s) predefined by the folder initiator.
Standard Workflow	A workflow consists of an orchestrated and repeatable pattern of activity. This is a traditional workflow where the steps to complete a business process are predefined, and all alternate possible steps are also predefined, so users must complete the steps defined in the workflow to complete the process.

# 2.4 Create New Correspondence Case Folders

eCASE Correspondence Tracking features three different types of Case Folders (Workflow, Ad Hoc, and Routing List) and these three follow the same creation procedure.

(!!) Note: The form and fields contained in the form are dependent upon customer configuration, and your eCASE experience may differ. The screenshots and steps in this procedure are intended as an example.

Complete the steps below to initiate a new Correspondence Tracking Case Folder:

- 1. Click **Main Menu > New >** then select a **Correspondence Type**. The *New Folder* page appears.
- 2. Complete the required fields.
- (!!) Note: Required fields are indicated by a red border or red asterisk.

3. Click **Save**. The page refreshes, and the case folder is created.

Home / New Folder / Correspondence 2021-CC-00047 [Open]							
🖺 Save   b Actions 🗸	🖺 Save 🖞 Actions 🗸 🖉 Permissions 🏾 Dogs 🗸 😪 Discussions 🗠 Reports 🗸 🐨 Spelling						
Correspondence Attachments Assignments Comments							
Initiating Action Office : OIG	OIG					Correspondence Owner :	Admin Admi
Required fields are indicated with asterisk (*) and red outline.							
Owner	Other X		r Q	Туре	Outgoing		~
Date on Correspondence:		01/10/2022		(Enter Date of the Letter/B	Email/Item)	No Date	
Date Received:	Date Received:			Counts for Stats	No	•	
Date Folder Created:		01/10/2022					

For additional information regarding the case folder, please consult section 3 Correspondence Tracking Case Folder Interface.

# 2.5 Manage Correspondents

The following sections provide steps to search for and create new correspondents. It is a best practice to always search for a correspondent before creating a new requester in the system. This prevents duplicates and helps maintain data integrity.

### 2.5.1 Search Correspondents

To search for Correspondents:

1. From the Launch Pad, click **Correspondents > View > Search Correspondents**. The Search Correspondent page appears.

🔾 Search 🔸 New 🗸 🖌 Select Criteria 🖺 Sa	ve Criteria
Correspondent Type	
Contact Information O	
First Name	
Last Name	
Full Name	
Email	
Address (Primary) O	
Organization Name	
Address 1	

2. Select the **Correspondent Type** from the drop-down list.

- 3. Enter the search criteria in the fields.
- 4. Use the Output Table Properties to define the structure of the Search Results. Move Available Columns into the Selected Columns workspace by selecting the column name and then clicking the > right arrow button. These selections define the structure of the search results.
- 5. Click **Search** to execute a search against the criteria.

(!!) Note: Click Save Criteria to save the entered search criteria as a reusable search criteria template.

6. After clicking **Search**, the application returns a set of search results that match the entered criteria.

+ New - 👌 Actions	<ul> <li>P Copy Correspondent to individual </li> <li>P Copy Correspondent to organization</li> </ul>	ation 🔻 🔳 New Correspon	dences 👻	S View Correspondences	View Data Ch	anges < Back A	
Full Name	Primary Address	Secondary Address	Notes	Contact Type	Category	Created By	Created Date
Cynthia Dillow	806 West Diamond Avenue, Gaithersburg MD 20878	MD		Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/10/2021 2:51:15 PM
Lewis Smith				Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/9/2021 4:27:47 PM
Nagesh Konduri		•		Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/4/2021 4:47:55 PM
Nagesh Konduri		В		Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/4/2021 4:34:54 PM
Devyani R				Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/4/2021 4:28:49 PM
Nasir S				Correspondent	Individual	System Account	8/4/2021 4:20:47 PM

You can use the buttons and drop-down lists on the **(A)** *Action bar* to perform actions on correspondents selected in the **(B)** workspace. The following actions can be performed in the Correspondent Search Results page:

Name	Description
New drop-down list	Click this drop-down list to create a new Agency, Congressperson, Correspondent, or Senator profile.
Actions drop-down list	Select a correspondent from the search results and then click this drop-down list to select an action to perform on the row. Selections include: View, Edit, Delete, and Merge.
Copy Correspondent to Individual drop-down list	Select a correspondent from the search results and then click this drop-down to create a new contact for the correspondent.

#### **Getting Started**

Name	Description
Copy Correspondent to organization drop-down list	Select a correspondent from the search results and then click this drop-down to create a new organization to pair with the correspondent.
	This functionality is useful to avoid creating a new agency and new case, instead you can use this feature to assign the task to the new duplicate agency.
New Correspondences drop-down list	Select a correspondent from the search results and then make a selection from the drop-down list to create a new Correspondence folder. The selected Correspondent appears in the <i>Correspondent</i> field.
View Correspondences	Select a correspondent from the search results and then click this button to display a list of all Correspondence Tracking case folders created by this user.
View Data Changes	Select a correspondent from the search results and then click this button to open the Contact Data History window, which displays a list of all changes to the Contacts profile information.
Back	Click this button to return to the Search Correspondent page.

### 2.5.2 Create New Correspondent

(!!) Note: We recommended searching for the Correspondent you wish to create prior to creating a new Correspondent profile. This helps to eliminate duplicate profiles. The system creates a history for each Correspondent, so avoiding duplicates is beneficial to data integrity.

To create a new Correspondent:

1. From the Launch Pad, click **Correspondents > New > Correspondent**. The *New Correspondent* page appears.

#### **Getting Started**

New	1			
	🖺 Save 🗹 Spelling			
	Contact Information			
	Prefix :		First Name :	
	Middle Name :		Last Name :*	
	Suffix :		Full Name :	
	Organization Name :		Job Title :	
	Email :		Mobile :	
	Business Phone :		Business Fax :	
	Home Phone :		Alternative Phone :	
	Web Page :			

- 2. Enter the correspondent **First Name** in the field.
- 3. Enter the correspondent Last Name in the field.
- 4. Complete all required and additional fields as desired.
- 5. Click Save.

New	
🖺 Save 🖸 Spelling	
Contact Information	

6. A confirmation window appears. Click **OK**. The new correspondent profile is successfully created.

# 3 Correspondence Tracking Case Folder Interface

The following subsections capture information about the eCASE Correspondence Tracking interface.

# 3.1 Correspondence Tab

The *Correspondence* tab is the primary tab in the Correspondence Tracking case folder. It is used to capture information during folder creation and throughout the case folder workflow. The actual contents of this tab depend on your organization's configuration, and the screens provided in this manual are only an example.

Correspondence (Adhoc)	Attachments	Assignments	Journal E	Entries	Project Team			
Initiating Action Office : HQ -	Correspondence Owner : Cynthia Dillow							
Required fields are indica								
Correspondence						2021-CC-00022		
Date on Correspondence:	* 01/	07/2022		(Enter D	Date of the Letter/Em	nail/Item)	No Date	
Date Received by Departm	nent: mm	/dd/yyyy		(Enter D	Date Received by the	e Departme	ent)	
Date Received: *	01/	07/2022		(Enter D	Date Received by Co	ontrolling O	ffice)	
Date Folder Created:	01/0	07/2022						
Folder Owner:	Cyn	thia Dillow						

# 3.2 Attachments Tab

The Attachments tab allows you to add attachments to the Case Folder, as well as manage these attachments using the **Check Out/In, Send out and OCR Document** functions. Attachments in this tab are structured by the value selected in the Attachment Type drop-down list during upload.

You can **(A)** upload, edit, or perform other actions to attachments by using the buttons and menus in the action bar.

After an Attachment is uploaded to the tab, it is placed in the **(B)** document filing structure according to the selections made during upload.

👌 Actions 🔻 🚇 Permissions 🛛 Logs 🔹 🕞 Discussions 🛛 🗠 Reports 👻 Add Task												
Correspondence (Workflow) Attachments Assignments Journal Entries (1) Project Team												
🕇 Add From 🍷 🗄 Add Child From 🍷 🗭 Edit 🍷 🎤 Manage 🍷 🖂 Send To 🍷 T Filter 🛬 Switch View 💉 Collapse 🗢 Hide Empty												
Description Name	Created	Created By	Modified	Modified By	Checked Out By	Size	Review Status					
V 🔄 1 Incoming Correspondence												
🖼 1.1 Clarification			В									
V 🔁 1.2 Proof of Identity or Consent Documents												
Attachment for Documentation.dotx	12/10/2021 2:00:41 PM	Randall Hamm	12/10/2021 2:00:41 PM	Randall Hamm		27 KB	Not Applicable					
🖼 1.3 Other												
▼ 🚘 2 Response Preparation Documents												
🚘 2.1 Program Area Input												

### 3.2.1 Attachment Actions

The drop-down lists and buttons available within the Attachments tab Action Bar include:

- Add From: Upload attachments to the Attachments Workspace.
- Add Child From: Add child level attachments to attachments already within the Attachments Workspace.
- *Edit*: Edit selected attachments. When editing an attachment, it is "checked out" and other users are not able to edit the attachment until it is checked in.
- Manage: Manage, alter and delete attachments, properties, and metadata.
- Send To: Distribute an attachment via email.
- *Filter*: Open the *Filter Attachments* pop up window, where you can select options from the drop-down lists to filter the attachments contained in the tab.
- Switch View: Alter the filing structure of the Attachments Workspace.
- Collapse: Collapse all folders within the filing structure.
- Hide Empty: Make empty folders invisible within the Attachments Workspace.

### 3.2.2 Upload a Document

To upload a document to the attachment tab:

1. Within the *Attachments* tab of the case folder, select **Add From > My Computer**. The *Add New Attachment* pop up window appears.

Add New Attachment	
Correspondence ID	2021-WHC-00118
File(s) to be Attached*	Select
Attachment Name	
Prepare for Review*	No
Description	
	^
Attachment Type	~
Document Type	~
Spell	Add Close

- 2. Click Select. The File Explorer pop-up window appears.
- 3. Select the attachment to upload and click **Open**. The *File Explorer* pop up window closes and the attachment appears in the File(s) to be Attached field.
- 4. By default, the file name will be used but to rename the attachment being added Enter the new name in the **Attachment Name** field.
- 5. Select **Yes** or **No** from the Prepare for Review drop-down list. Selecting Yes will prepare the document for redaction.
- 6. Select the Attachment Type from the drop-down list.

# (!!) Note: The Attachment Type drop-down list selection determines where in the file structure the attachment is stored.

- 7. Select the **Document Type** (if applicable) from the drop-down list.
- 8. Click **Add**. The pop up window closes and the document appears in the attachment workspace.

# 3.3 Assignments Tab

The Assignments tab allows you to view the case folder workflow and the status of its tasks, and to complete any tasks that have been assigned to that user.

### 3.3.1 Assignments Tab Interface

The **(A)** *Tasks Assigned to Me* section allows you to perform actions on tasks that have been assigned to them specifically. Authorized users can complete a task, complete and assign the task, view the task information, and delegate the task to another user. The **(B)** *All Activities* 

section displays the full Correspondence Tracking case folder workflow depending on the workflow type.

(!!) Note: The tasks displayed in the All Activities workspace are dependent upon the Workflow Type.

Corresponden	ce (Workflow) Attachments	Assignments Journal Entries (2)	Project Team									
Tasks Assign	ned to Me O	Α										
✔ Comple	ete 👁 View 🕨 Delegate	-										
Ú T	ask Name	Role Name	Assigned By	Assigned Date	C	lue Date	Status					
B	. Draft Response	Subject Matter Expert	HQ - Randall Hamm	01/31/2022	0	2/15/2022 9:31:26 AM	Assigned					
Show: 20	show: 20 ÷											
Morkfle Workfle	ow Diagram(k) 🔅 Workflow Histor											
		У										
Ø	Task Name	y Role Name	Assigned By	Assigned To	Assigned Date	Due Date	Status					
Û	Task Name A. Direct Correspondence	y Role Name Intake Analyst	<b>Assigned By</b> HQ - Randall Hamm	<b>Assigned To</b> HQ - Randall Hamm	Assigned Date	Due Date 12/29/2021 2:17:15 PM	<b>Status</b> Completed Late					
0 	Task Name       A. Direct Correspondence       B. Draft Response	Role Name           Intake Analyst           Subject Matter Expert	<b>Assigned By</b> HQ - Randall Hamm HQ - Randall Hamm	Assigned To HQ - Randall Hamm HQ - Randall Hamm	Assigned Date 12/14/2021 01/31/2022	Due Date 12/29/2021 2:17:15 PM 02/15/2022 9:31:26 AM	Status Completed Late Assigned					
() 	Task Name       A. Direct Correspondence       B. Draft Response       B1. Additional Review	y Role Name Intake Analyst Subject Matter Expert Internal Reviewer	Assigned By HQ - Randall Hamm HQ - Randall Hamm	Assigned To HQ - Randall Hamm HQ - Randall Hamm	Assigned Date 12/14/2021 01/31/2022	Due Date 12/29/2021 2:17:15 PM 02/15/2022 9:31:26 AM	Status Completed Late Assigned Not Assigned					

## 3.3.2 Continue the Workflow

To continue the workflow after you complete an assigned task:

- 1. Navigate to the Assignments tab of the case folder.
- 2. Select the **Task** from the Tasks Assigned to Me workspace, and then click the **Complete** button.

SKS	Assigned to Me O					
~	Complete @ View	➡ Delegate				
U	Task Name	Role Name	Assigned By	Assigned Date	Due Date	Status
	B. Draft Response	Subject Matter Expert	HQ - Randall Hamm	01/31/2022	02/15/2022 9:31:26 AM	Assigned

3. The *Select Next Activity* pop up window appears if more than one route is available. Select a Radio button to designate the next activity in the workflow, then click the **Select** button.



4. The Select Next Activity pop-up window closes and the Assign Task pop up window appears. Click the Select User lookup icon.

Assign Task Note: * fields are mandatory.	
Basic	
Task Name	B1. Additional Review
Role	Internal Diviewer
Assignee Type	User 🗸
Select User*	
	View Availability
	Please select the user before viewing availability
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days
Due Days*	
	Assign Close

- 5. The pop up window refreshes to display a list of eligible users. Click the radio button adjacent the user to assign the task, and then click OK.
- 6. The pop up window refreshes and the Assign Task workspace reappears, and the user appears in the Select User field.
- 7. Select the **Type of Due Days** from the drop-down list.
- 8. Enter the **number of days** (or planned due date if the option is present) until the assignment is due in the Due Days field.



- 9. Click Assign. The pop up window refreshes to display Journal Entries workspace.
- 10. Enter the Journal Entries Comments in the text editor and click **Continue**.

# 3.4 Journal Entries Tab

The *Journal Entries* tab is used to create a notes log for the case folder. Journal Entries can be added manually or when prompted while starting or continuing a workflow task. Entries made during the workflow are automatically updated in the Journal Entry tab and reference the associated task. From the *Journal Entries/Comments* tab, you can:

- Add a new Journal Entry
- Edit a Journal Entry
- View attachments added to Journal Entries
- Delete a Journal Entry

The *Journal Entries* tab features a set of **(A)** action buttons, which allow you to perform actions directly upon journal entries in **the (B)** workspace.

orrespondence (Adhoc) Attachments Assignments Journal Entries (3) Project Team											
➡ Add	View Attachment     X Delete     Comments	Attachments	Action Office	Date/Time	Action						
Cynthia Dillow	These comments pertain to folder #2020-CC-00003.	0 Attachments	HQ - Headquarters	01/04/2022 2:29:36 PM	Journal Entry Added						
Cynthia Dillow	When making an assignment a journal entry can be added and it will be linked with the action/activity in the journal entry log.	0 Attachments	HQ - Headquarters	01/04/2022 2:28:13 PM	Task created [Assign SME]						
Cynthia Dillow	General comments can added to journal entries and attachments can also be included if enabled.	1 Attachments	HQ - Headquarters	01/04/2022 2:27:32 PM	Journal Entry Added						
Show: 50 \$					1						

You can attach a document to the Journal Entry during creation. From the *Journal Entry Details* window, click the **Choose Files** button and select the attachment.



# 3.5 Routing List Tab (If Enabled)

The *Routing List* tab is unique to the Routing List correspondence type. Rather than utilize a conventional Assignments tab, this tab is used to create the routing path for the specific folder.



The Routing List tab features (A) an Action bar, where you can add, delete, save, and sort templates in the (B) Workspace.

Additionally, it features the **(C)** Add Activity button, where you can create new tasks. Once the routing list steps are prepared, you can begin the workflow by clicking Actions > Start. Moving to the Assignments tab then provides a view of the tasks configured for the folder and a view of each task status.

### 3.5.1 Add Activity

Follow the steps below to add an activity to a Routing List workflow:

- 1. On the Routing List tab, click Add Activity.
- 2. Select an Activity from the drop-down list, assign a user/group/queue in the Assigned To field, Set the **Turnaround Days** for each assigned activity, and add any instructions for the assignment.
- 3. You can click the **My Office Only** button to refresh the tab and only display the Routing List Activities assigned to users in your office. Click the **Show All** button to return to the full Routing List tab view.

(!!) Notes:

- After the Routing List has been created and saved, the selected activities are also visible in the Assignments tab. You can complete assigned individual tasks from the Assignments tab.
- Additional activities can be added to the routing of the case folder at any time.

### 3.5.2 Complete Routing List Task

To complete a Routing List task has been assigned to you:

- 1. Open the assigned Case Folder and navigate to the Routing *List* tab.
- 2. Click **Actions > Continue**. The *Assign Task* window appears. This window can be prepopulated with recipient and body information or can be manually completed.
- (!!) Note: If the Routing List workflow has not been started, instead click Actions > Start.



3. Click the **To** button. The *Email Recipients* window appears.

4. Select the Recipients of the message and click **To** ->. The selected Users appear in the *To* recipients list. Repeat this step for both the CC-> and BCC-> recipients list.

Email Recipients			
Recipient Type	User	~	<u>^</u>
Filter By: Action Office	All		~
Full Name/Email ID			٩
Source List		Recipients List	- 1
Alex Jones Cindy Dillow Cynthia Dillow Dev User Devontay Eluett Devortaytest Tester Devyani Raghuwanshi Jared Brower John Doe Joseph Kincaid Juan Gonzalez Michael Eidelkind Nagesh Konduri Outsidey Outsiderman Randall Hamm Sailaedra Gardham	* TO ->	Nagesh Konduri Outsidey Outsiderman	× ×
Sebastian Serrano	BCC ->		Ŧ
Properties		Add	Close

- 5. Once the message recipients are selected, click **Add**. The window closes and the selected recipients appear in the *To/CC/BCC* fields.
- 6. Click the **Send a Calendar Appointment as Attachment** checkbox to include an Outlook calendar appointment attachment alongside the message, if desired.
- 7. Use the Text Editor to configure the message content.
- 8. Click **Start** to send the message and begin the next step in the Routing List workflow. The assigned recipients are notified that they have been assigned the task and must log in to complete their assigned task.

# 3.6 Project Team Tab (If Enabled)

The Project Team tab allows you to view a list of users/groups with access to this Correspondence folder, as well as assign or remove users/groups to folder roles. These roles provide different levels of access to the case folder and file attachments. Only authorized users can update members in the Project Team tab.

Co	rrespondence (V	Workflow)	Attachments	Assignments	Journal Entries	Project Team						
м	Multi User Roles O											
	+ Add User	+ Add Grou	Remove	User/Group								
		User/Group	)		Office				Role Name			
		Admin							Approver			
		Randall Ham	ım		HQ - Heac	Iquarters			Approver			
	Show: 20 🜩									1		

### 3.6.1 Add User to Correspondence Folder

To add a user to this Correspondence folder:

1. Navigate to the *Project Team* tab, and in either the *Single User Roles* or *Multi-User Roles* workspaces, click **Add User**.

Corresponden	ce (Workflow)	Attachments	Assignments	Journal Entries (3)	Project Team									
Multi User Ro	Multi User Roles 😡													
- Add Use	ACC Gro	up 🛪 Remove	User/Group											
	User/Group		Office			Role Name								
	Admin													
	Randall Hamm		HQ - He	adquarters		Approver								

2. The Assign Role window appears. Select a Role from the Role drop-down list.

Select Users		
Note: * fields are mandatory		
Role*	[Please Select Role]	~
		Add Close

3. The window refreshes and the *User* field appears. Click the **User** lookup. The window refreshes to display a list of eligible users/groups.



4. Click the **checkbox** next to the user you'd like to select and click **OK**.

	Full Name	User Name	Email	Office	Group
	Alex Jones	ayenishetti	ayenishetti@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Cindy Dillow	cdillow	cdillow@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Cynthia Dillow	Admin	nkonduir@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Devyani Raghuwanshi	devyani	draghuwanshi@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Jared Brower	jbrower	jbrower@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	John Doe	sadmin	jdoe@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Joseph Kincaid	jkincaid	jkincaid@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
Τ	Juan Gonzalez	juan	jgonzalez@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Michael Eidelkind	mike	meidelkind@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Randall Hamm	Rhamm	jmoyer@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Sailendra Gandham	sgandham	sgandham@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admin
	Sebastian Serrano	sserrano	sserrano@ains.com	HQ - Headquarters	Admir

- 5. The selected user appears in the User field. Click Add.
- 6. The window closes, and the selected user appears in the *Project Team* tab, featuring the assigned roles(s).

### 3.6.2 Remove a User/Group

To remove a user/group:

1. Navigate to the *Project Team* tab, and in either the *Single User Roles* or *Multi-User Roles* workspaces, select the user to remove and click **Remove User/Group**.

Home / Correspond	ence(Workf	low) 2021-WHC-00	)118 [In Progress]				
🗄 Actions 🔻 🖌	Permissio	ns 🔊 Logs 🔻	Q Discussions	🛃 Reports 🔻	Add 1	Task	
Correspondence (V	Vorkflow)	Attachments	Assignments	Journal Entrie	s (1)	Project Team	
Multi User Roles	o						
+ Add User	+ Add Gro	oup Kemove	User/Group				
	User/	/Group				Office	
	Alex J	lones				HQ - Headq	uarters
	Randa	all Hamm				HQ - Headq	uarters
Show: 50 ♦							

2. The page refreshes and the selected user/group is removed from the role.

# 4.1 Advance the Correspondence Tracking Workflow

eCASE Correspondence Tracking advances case folders through one of several workflows by assigning and tracking tasks on the *Assignments* tab. The subsections below describe common workflow tasks required to complete a case folder.

### 4.1.1 Start Workflow

Follow the steps below to start a new workflow:

1. Open the case folder where you'd like to start the workflow and select **Start** from the *Actions* drop-down list.



(!!) Note: If your application is configured to begin the workflow after saving the folder, then you are not required to start the workflow manually.

2. The Assign Task window appears. Select the **Assignee Type** from the drop-down list. Selections can include: Users, Groups, or Queues.

3. Click the **Select User/Office Queue** lookup and select the user or office queue to assign the task. Click **OK**. The selected user/group/queue appears in the *Select User* field.

Assign Task Note: * fields are mandatory. Basic		
Task Name	A. Direct Correspondence	
Role	Intake Analyst	
Assignee Type	User 🗸	
Select User*	9	
	View Availability Please select the wer before viewing availability	
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days	
Due Days*		
	Assign Close	•

(!!) Note: If an Ad hoc Workflow is being utilized, you need to select the Task Name from the Task Name drop-down list. Standard workflows will have the task to be assigned already populated.

- 4. Select the **Due Days Type** from the drop-down list.
- 5. Enter the number of **Due Days** or **Planned Due Date** in the field.
- 6. Click **Assign**. The window refreshes to display a new tab that depends upon the current workflow step.

(!!) Note: Consult the Assign Task Interface section for additional information regarding the Assign Task Interface tabs.

7. Complete any required fields or enter the requested information in the workspace, then click **Start**.



(!!) Note: The Start Workflow window may include a Task Instructions, Journal Entries, and/or an Email Notification tab. The tabs present in this window depend on your configuration. Content in these tabs must be populated prior to clicking Start.

8. The window closes, and the task is assigned to the designated user.

### 4.1.2 Continue/Complete Task

There are two ways to complete tasks assigned to you. You can either:

- **Continue**: Completes the assigned task and automatically progresses to the next stage in the workflow.
- **Complete and Create Task**: Completes the assigned task and allows you to create the next task and assign it to another user. This is only available in Ad Hoc correspondence folders.

To continue a workflow/complete a task assigned to you:

1. Navigate to the Assignments tab of the case folder. Any assigned tasks appear in the Tasks Assigned to Me workplace.

Tasks Assigned to Me O					
✓ Complete					
🏮 Task Name	Role Name	Assigned By	Assigned Date	Due Date	Status
A. Direct Correspondence	Intake Analyst	HQ - Randall Hamm	12/09/2021	12/24/2021 12:53:06 PM	Assigned
Show: 20 ¢					1

2. Select the assigned task, and then click **Complete**.

Tasks A	ssigned to Me O		
	Task Name	Role Name	Assigned By
	A. Direct Correspondence	Intake Analyst	HQ - Randall Hamm
Show	20 🗢		

3. The Assign Task screen appears. Select the Assignee Type from the drop-down list.

IGN IASK * fields are mandatory. sic		
Task Name	D. Agency Clearance	
Role	Staff Reviewer	
Assignee Type	User	~
Select User*		٩
	View Availability	
	Please select the user before viewing availability	
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days	~
Due Days*		
	Ass	

4. Click the Select User lookup.

Assign Task Note: * fields are mandatory. Basic	
Task Name	B1. Additional Review
Role	Internal Reviewer
Assignee Type	User 🗸
Select User*	
	View Availability
	Please select the user before viewing availability
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days
Due Days*	
	Assign Close

5. The screen refreshes to display a list of eligible assignees. Click the radio button adjacent the assignee and then click **OK**.

	Full Name	User Name	Email	
	Alex Jones	ayenishetti	ayenishetti@ains.com	
)	Cindy Dillow	cdillow	cdillow@ains.com	
	Cynthia Dillow	Admin	nkonduir@ains.com	
)	Devyani Raghuwanshi	devyani	draghuwanshi@ains.com	
	Jared Brower	jbrower	jbrower@ains.com	
	John Doe	sadmin	jdoe@ains.com	
	Joseph Kincaid	jkincaid	jkincaid@ains.com	
$\mathbf{D}$	Juan Gonzalez	juan	jgonzalez@ains.com	

- 6. The window refreshes to display the *Assign Task* workspace. The selected user appears in the *Select User* field. Select the **Due Days Type** from the drop-down list.
- 7. Enter the number of **Due Days** in the field and click **Assign**.

Assign Task		
Note: * fields are mandatory.		
Basic		
Task Name	B. Draft Response	
Role	Subject Matter Expert	
Assignee Type	User	~
Select User*	Randall Hamm;	Q
	vaw Availability	
	Please se, of the user before viewing availabil	ity
Due Days Type	Turnaround by vs	~
Due Days*	15	
		Assign Close

8. The window refreshes to display a *Journal Entry Comments* workspace. Enter the journal entry in the text editor and then click **Continue**.

Cor Note: *	ntinu <sub>fields ar</sub>	e Wo	orkfl <sub>tory.</sub>	OW										
Jou	rnal Ei	ntry Co	omme	ents										
	Comm	nents												
	A •	Tl ▼	в	I	U	<del>S</del>	x2	<b>x</b> <sup>2</sup>	٥	<b>%</b> -	¶ -	≣	)E	
	≔	<u>.</u>		66 <b>-</b>										
	00		-	k		X	₽	?	C	C				
	Ţhis	is a sa	ample	journ	al entr	у.								
											Con	tinue	C	lose

9. The window closes, and the task is assigned to the selected user.

### 4.1.3 Delegate Task

Complete the steps below delegate a task:

1. Navigate to the Assignments tab of the case folder. Any assigned tasks appear in the Tasks Assigned to Me workplace. Select the task and then click **Delegate**.

<b>√</b> 0	Complete		
J	Task Name	Role Name	Assigned By
	A. Direct Correspondence	Intake Analyst	HQ - Randall Hamm

2. The *Delegate Task* screen appears. Click the **Select User** lookup.

#### Delegate Task

Note: * fields	s are mandatory	
Basic	Send Email Notification	Journal Entry Comments
Corr	respondence ID	2021-WHC-00119
Task	Name	B. Draft Response
Curr	ently Assigned To	Cynthia Dillow
Assi	gnee Type	User
Sele	ct User*	0
		View Availability
		Please select the user before viewing availability
		Delegate Close

(!!) Note: The Delegate Task screen also features additional tabs where you can configure the email notification that accompanies the assignment or log a Journal Entry to support the case folder. These features are described further in the Assign Task Interface subsection.

3. The screen refreshes to display a list of eligible users. Click the **radio button** adjacent the user and then click **OK**.

Select	an option						
All -				×	Q		
$\sim$		•	-				
$\bigcirc$	John Doe	sadmin	jdoe@ains.com				
$\bigcirc$	Joseph Kincaid	jkincaid	jkincaid@ains.com				
$\bigcirc$	Juan Gonzalez	juan	jgonzalez@ains.com				
$\bigcirc$	Michael Eidelkind	mike	meidelkind@ains.com				
0	Randall Hamm	Rhamm	jmoyer@ains.com				
$\bigcirc$	Sailendra Gandham	sgandham	sgandham@ains.com				
$\bigcirc$	Sebastian Serrano	sserrano	sserrano@ains.com				
1 item(s	Page 1  v of 1  v and 1 item(s) are allowed at the selected.						
			ОКС	ancel			

4. The workspace updates to display the full *Delegate Task* window, and the designated user appears in the *Select User* field. Click **Delegate**. The window closes, and the *Assignments* tab refreshes. The *Tasks Assigned To Me* workspace disappears, and the task is delegated to the selected user.

#### Delegate Task

ote: * fields are manda	tory		
Basic Send	Ema Notifica	ation Journal Entry Comments	
Corresponden	ce ID	2021-WHC-00115	
Task Name		1. Direct Correspondence	
Currently Assig	gned To	Randa L Hamm	
Assignee Type		User	~
Select User*		Randall Hamm;	Q
		View Availability	L-114.
		Please select the user before viewing point	
			Delegate Close

### 4.1.4 Complete and Create Task

The Ad Hoc workflow allows you to complete a task and then create a new one to assign to another user. Complete the steps below to complete and create a task:

1. Navigate to the Assignments tab of the case folder. Any assigned tasks appear in the Tasks Assigned to Me workplace. Select the task and then click **Complete and Create Task**.

Dillow

2. The Assign Task screen appears. Select the Task Name from the drop-down list.

Accian	lack
Assign	ICIDIN

Tack	Namo*						
Idok	Name						~
Assig	nee Type	User					~
Selec	t User*						Q
		View Availability					
		Diense select the user	hefore viewing availabi	lity			
Due	Dave Tura	ricuse select the user	selore viewing available	y			
Duei	Days Type	Turnaround Days					~
Due l	Days	Days	0 Hour	~	0 Min	~	
		🛗 Get Due Date 🛛 Cli	ick button to get estim	ated due date			

(!!) Note: You can select the Add New selection from this drop-down list to create a new ad hoc task. If you select Add New, the New Task screen appears. Enter the Task Name in the field and click OK.

Close

- 3. Click the **Select User** lookup to select the user who is assigned the task. The screen refreshes to display a list of eligible users.
- 4. Click the **radio button** adjacent the user and then click **OK**.

Full Name         User Name         Email           Alex Jones         ayenishetti         ayenishetti@ains.com           Cindy Dillow         cdillow         cdillow@ains.com           Dynahia Dillow         Admin         nkonduir@ains.com           Devyani Raghuwanshi         devyani         draghuwanshi@ains.com           Jared Brower         Jbrower         jbrower@ains.com           John Doe         sadmin         jdoe@ains.com           Joseph Kincald         Jkincald         jkincald@ains.com           Juan Gonzalez         juan         juan         jgonzalez@ains.com           Michael Eidelkind         mike         meidelkind@ains.com           Sallendra Gandham         Sgandham         ggandham@ains.com	All 🕶			×	Q
Alex Jones       ayenishetti       ayenishetti@ains.com         Cindy Dillow       cdillow       cdillow@ains.com         Cynthia Dillow       Admin       nkonduir@ains.com         Devyani Raghuwanshi       devyani       draghuwanshi@ains.com         Jared Brower       Jbrower       Jbrower Qains.com         John Doe       sadmin       Jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincaid       jkincaid       jkincaid@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       juan       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Randall Hamm       Rhamm       midelkind@ains.com         Salendra Gandham       ggandham @ains.com       sector	¥	Full Name	User Name	Email	
Cindy Dillow       cdillow       cdillow@ains.com         Cynthia Dillow       Admin       nkonduir@ains.com         Devyani Raghuwanshi       devyani       draghuwanshi@ains.com         Jared Brower       Jbrower       Jbrower       Jbrower@ains.com         John Doe       sadmin       jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincaid       Jkincaid       Jkincaid@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       Juan       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Kincaid Lidekind       mike       meidekind@ains.com         Salendra Gandham       Raman       jmoyer@ains.com	0	Alex Jones	ayenishetti	ayenishetti@ains.com	
Cynthia Dillow       Admin       nkonduir@ains.com         Devyani Raghuwanshi       devyani       draghuwanshi@ains.com         Jared Brower       jbrower       jbrower@ains.com         John Doe       sadmin       jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincaid       jkincaid       jkincaid@ains.com         Jared Brower       juan       jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincaid       jkincaid       jkincaid@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Michael Eidelkind       mike       meidelkind@ains.com         Randail Hamm       Rhamm       jmoyer@ains.com         Sallendra Gandham       sgandham       sgandham@ains.com	0	Cindy Dillow	cdillow	cdillow@ains.com	
Devyani Raghuwanshi       devyani       draghuwanshi@ains.com         Jared Brower       jbrower       jbrower       jbrower@ains.com         John Doe       sadmin       jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincald       jkincald       jkincald@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Michael Eidelkind       mike       meidelkind@ains.com         Sallendra Gandham       ggandham       jmoyer@ains.com	$\bigcirc$	Cynthia Dillow	Admin	nkonduir@ains.com	
Jared Brower     Jbrower     Jbrower@ains.com       John Doe     sadmin     jdoe@ains.com       Joseph Kincaid     Jkincaid     jkincaid@ains.com       Juan Gonzalez     Juan     jgonzalez@ains.com       Michael Eidelkind     mike     meidelkind@ains.com       Randall Hamm     Rhamm     jmoyer@ains.com       Sailendra Gandham     sgandham     sgandham@ains.com	0	Devyani Raghuwanshi	devyani	draghuwanshi@ains.com	
John Doe       sadmin       jdoe@ains.com         Joseph Kincaid       jkincaid       jkincaid@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Michael Eidelkind       mike       meidelkind@ains.com         Randall Hamm       Rhamm       jmoyer@ains.com         Saliendra Gandham       sgandham       sgandham@ains.com	$\bigcirc$	Jared Brower	jbrower	jbrower@ains.com	
Joseph Kincaid       jkincaid       jkincaid@ains.com         Juan Gonzalez       juan       jgonzalez@ains.com         Michael Eidelkind       mike       meidelkind@ains.com         Randall Hamm       Rhamm       jmoyer@ains.com         Sailendra Gondham       sgandham       sgandham@ains.com	0	John Doe	sadmin	jdoe@ains.com	
Juan Gonzalez     juan     jgonzalez@ains.com       Michael Eidelkind     mike     meidelkind@ains.com       Randall Hamm     Rhamm     jmoyer@ains.com       Saliendra Gandham     sgandham     sgandham@ains.com	0	Joseph Kincaid	jkincaid	jkincaid@ains.com	
Michael Eidelkind     mike     meidelkind@ains.com       Randall Hamm     Rhamm     jmoyer@ains.com       Sailendra Gandham     sgandham     sgandham@ains.com	0	Juan Gonzalez	juan	jgonzalez@ains.com	
Randall Hamm     Rhamm     jmoyer@ains.com       Sailendra Gandham     sgandham     sgandham@ains.com       Item(s) calented Maximum on the selected     or the selected	0	Michael Eidelkind	mike	meidelkind@ains.com	
Sailendra Gandham sgandham sgandham gandham or sgandham or sgandha	0	Randall Hamm	Rhamm	jmoyer@ains.com	
0 item(s) selected Maximum up to be selected	0	Sailendra Gandham	sgandham	sgandham@ains.com	
0 item(s) selected Maximum on the selected	$\sim$			<u>.</u>	
oriental selected maximum or new procession	0 item(s)	selected. Maximum or men and linear to be selected	i.		

5. The selected user appears in the field. Select the type of **Due Days** from the drop-down list.

- 6. Enter the number of **due days** in the field. If desired, select the number of hours and minutes.
- 7. Click the Task Instruction tab and enter the task instructions in the free text field.
- 8. Click the Email Notification tab and configure the email message information.
- 9. Click the Journal Entry tab and enter the Journal Entry information in the free text field.
- 10. Click **Continue**. The screen closes and the task is assigned to the indicated user.

### 4.1.5 Clearance Actions

Clearance Actions can be configured to any task in a workflow/routing/ad hoc case folder. This feature is designed to provide clearance or concurrence on an activity. A clearance action is an approval required before a task can be continued. An authorized user must approve/reject the task. Using this feature creates an audit trail until a task is approved and maintains a record of status and comments for each rejection or approval.

Complete the required fields on the *Clearance Action* screen and click **Save** to assign the clearance action.

Clearance Action		
Note: * fields are mandatory		
Basic		
Task Name	Review and Approve by Dept Sec	
Clearance Office*		Q
Clearance Performer*	Cynthia Dillow	
Clearance Action*	[ Select Action ]	~
Comments		
		/
Spelling		Save Close

After creating Clearance Actions, they are listed within the Clearances section in the *Assignments* tab. You can select a Clearance from the list and take one of the following actions from the *Clearance Action(s)* drop-down:

Correspondence (Wo	rkflow) Attachments	Assignments	Journal Entries (4)	Project Team			
Clearances O							
+ Add Clearances	(n) 🗄 Clearances Actio	ns(p) 👻					
Clearances Office	Clearances Performer	Created/Modified Da	te Task Name	Action By	<b>Clearances Action</b>	Comments	
Africa	Randall Hamm	01/31/2022	D. Agency Cle	arance			
Europe	Randall Hamm	01/31/2022	D. Agency Cle	arance			
Show: 20 🗢						1	

- Clearance Log: View the Clearance Log Details for the entry.
- Edit: Edit the selected clearance information.
- Take Action: Approve or reject the Clearance Action, or enter any comments.
- Delete: Permanently delete the selected clearance.
- Move Up: Reorder the selected clearance up in the workspace.
- Move Down: Reorder the selected clearance down in the workspace.

# 4.2 Assign Task Interface

The Assign Task screen is where you can reassign or delegate tasks that have been assigned to you. You can select a preconfigured task from the Task Name drop-down list or create your own using the Add New drop-down list option. After the task is selected, you must determine who is assigned to the task, and then select that user/group using the fields in this window. Finally, the Due Date Type and number of Due Days must be selected before the task can be assigned.

(!!) Note: The Assign Task screen features different tabs for each case folder type. Ad Hoc Correspondence features the Task Instruction and Journal Entry tabs. The Workflow case folder screen is shown below.

Assign	Task		
Note: * fields	are mandatory		
Basic	Email Notification	Comment	
Task Na	ime*		~
Assigne	ee Type*	User	~
Select l	Jser*		Q
		View Availability	
		Please select the user before viewing availability	
Due Da	ys Type	Turnaround Days	~
Due Da	ys		
		Start	Close

### 4.2.1 Basic Tab Functionality

After a workflow is initiated, it must be assigned to a user to complete the first step. The Assign Task window appears when a workflow is started, or a task is assigned, and opens to the Basic tab. Generally, fields on this tab are grouped with other similar fields. The **(A)** Task Name drop-down list allows you to set the assigned task or create a new one from scratch. The **(B)** Assignee fields allow you to determine the user being assigned a task. The fields in the **(C)** Due Days section allow you to set the deadline for completing the task.

### Assign Task

Assignee Type	User 🗸	
Select User*	٩	
	View Availability	
	Please select the user before viewing availability	
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days	
Due Days	Days 0 Hour V 0 Min V	
	🛗 Get Due Date	
	Click button to get estimated due date C	

The fields on this tab are described below:

Field	Description
Task Name	Select the task being assigned using this drop-down list. You can create new tasks by selecting the <b>Add New</b> option. The Add New Task functionality is captured in the subsection below.
Assignee Type	Select the recipient of the assignment.

Field	Description
Select User/Office/Office queue	Click the lookup to select the specific recipient of the assignment. The options available in this field are determined by the Assignee Type selection. The <b>View Availability</b> button activates after a user is selected, and clicking it allows you to view the selected user's calendar.
Due Days Type	Select the nature of the days until the task is due.
Due Days	Use the days/time picker fields to determine the specific number of days until the task is due. If the <i>Due Days Type</i> is "Turnaround Days," the <i>Due Days</i> field is a simple numeric field.
	If the <i>Due Days Type</i> is a "Planned Due Date," you must select the day from the calendar picker, and then the hour and minute using the adjacent drop-down lists.

## 4.2.2 Add New Task Functionality

The Ad Hoc Case Folder permits authorized users to assign a task that is not already preconfigured in the application. To create a new task:

- 1. Navigate to the Assignments tab of the case folder.
- 2. If the workflow has not yet begun, select **Start** from the Actions drop-down list. The Assign Task screen appears.

### Assign Task

asic Task Ins	truction Journal Entry
Task Name*	~
Assignee Type	User 🗸
Select User*	Q
	View Availability
	Please select the user before viewing availability
Due Days Type	Turnaround Days 🗸

3. Select Add New from the Task Name drop-down list. The New Task screen appears.



- 4. Enter a **name** for the Task in the Task Name field. Click **OK**. The window closes, the screen refreshes, and the entered name appears in the *Task Name* drop-down list.
- 5. Select the **Assignee Type** from the drop-down list. The window refreshes to display a new field allowing you to select the *Assignee*.
- 6. Click the *Select Assignee* field and select the assignee.
- 7. Select the **Due Days Type** from the drop-down list.
- (!!) Note: This selection may change the Due Days field.
- 8. Use the calendar/time pickers to select the **due date**.
- 9. Click Start.

Turnarour	nd Days		~
Days	16 Hours 🗸	17 Min	~
🛗 Get Due I	Date		
Click button	to get estimated	due date	
		Start	Close
	Turnarour Days Get Due I Click button	Turnaround Days         Days       16 Hours ✓	Turnaround Days         Days       16 Hours ♥         17 Min             Get Due Date          Click button to get estimated due date          Start

10. The window closes, the tab refreshes, and the newly created task appears in the *Assignments* tab workspace.

### 4.2.3 Task Instruction Tab

The *Task Instruction* tab is only available in Ad Hoc correspondence folders. On this tab you can use the text editor to enter any additional instructions regarding the assigned task. The Assigned User receives the entered instruction alongside the assigned task.

sic	Task Ir	nstruc	tion	Jou	rnal Er	ntry				
Instru	uction									
A	• T! •	в	I	U	S	x <sub>2</sub>	x <sup>2</sup>	٥	<b>%</b> -	¶ -
≡.	•   <b>=</b>	⊨	<u>.</u>		<b>66 -</b>					
°o		-	k	_	2	₽	?	Ċ	C	
Ту	pe some	ething								

|--|

## 4.2.4 Email Notification Tab

The Email Notification tab is where you create the email message that is distributed by eCASE alongside the assigned task.



Use the (A) Recipient fields to determine who will receive the email message.

Configure the (B) Subject & Calendar Appointment fields.

Use the **(C)** text editor to create the message text or edit a template message to include more specific assignment information.

The fields on this tab are described below:

Field	Description
Send a Calendar Appointment as Attachment	Include an MS Outlook calendar appointment with the message.
Subject	The focus of the message.

Field	Description
Message	Use the text editor to create a new message or alter a message template to reflect the specific details of this task.

## 4.2.5 Comment/Journal Entry Tab

The Comment/Journal Entry tab is shown below:

As	sign * fields	Task <sup>are man</sup>	( idatory											
B	asic	Ema	ail No	tificati	on	Com	ment							
	Comme	ents	A											
	A •	Ti 🕶	В	I	U	<del>s</del>	x <sub>2</sub>	x²	٥	<b>%</b> -	¶ -	≣.•	)E	
	≔	⊡	⊡	66 -										
	ø		-	k		2	₽	?	Ċ	C				
	Attach	file(r)						0.64	5		61			
	Add Jou	urnal Er	ntry At	tachme	ents to	the Em	ail				o tile c	nosen		
•														+

Use the **(A)** *Text Editor* to create a comment or Journal Entry to include with the assignment. Users assigned to a task can reference information entered here to help complete their task.

You can add an attachment by clicking (B) Choose Files.

You can click the **(C)** Add Journal Entry Attachments to the Email checkbox to distribute attachments added in this window alongside the email message.

# 4.3 Closing a Correspondence Folder

The following subsections describe the processes to close a Correspondence folder with and without attachments.

## 4.3.1 Closing with Documents in Attachments Tab

To close a Correspondence folder:

1. Navigate to the case folder. Select **Close** from the Actions drop-down.

	🗄 Actions 🔻	Permissions	🔊 Logs 🔻	Q Discussions	🛃 Reports 🔻	Add
	Continue	۸tt	tachments	Assignments	Journal Entries (1	1)
I	Delegate					
1	Suspend					
	Close	CI	<b>History</b> ose			
	Lock Cori	ondence	Rol	e Name	Assigned By	
	Abort		Use	r	HQ - Cynthia Dillo	w
	Delete					
	Change Fold	ler Number				
	Add to Mon	itor List				
	Add to Favor	rites				
1	Deliver Docu	uments				
	Export as XN	1L	Cleara	nces Performer		(
	Check Permi	ssion				

(!!) Note: Case Closing eligibility and actions are dependent upon your organization's workflow.

2. The *Close Correspondence* screen appears. The *Correspondence Closed Date* field indicates today's date.



- 3. Click the **Send Email Notification** tab to configure the email notification sent by the application when this case folder is closed.
- 4. Click the **Journal Entry Comments** tab to configure the journal entry that is added to the case folder when this case folder is closed.

- 5. Click Close Correspondence.
- 6. A confirmation message appears, asking if you would like to deliver the case folder documents first. Click **OK** to deliver documents.

# (!!) Note: A confirmation pop-up window appears if documents have been uploaded to the Attachments tab.

7. The *Deliver Documents* screen appears. Use the *To/CC/BCC* fields to configure the message recipients.

liver Documents	Date:01/06/2022 Corre	espondent: George Sta
ontent Attachments		
From*: nkonduir@ains.com	From: HQ - Headquar	rters
[Note: To enter multiple recipients use a To*	comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]	
[Note: To enter multiple recipients use a	comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]	
Show Bcc:		
Email Template:	[Select Email Template]	
Subject:	2021-WHC-00112 - Documents	
Message:		
$\mathbf{A} \bullet \mathbf{T} \mathbf{i} \bullet \mathbf{B}  I  \underline{\mathbf{U}}$	<del>§</del> x₂ x² ǿ ४ँ• ¶ँ• ≣• ≡ ≡ ≡ धि•	
% 🖬 – k 🍠	2° 🕀 ? "D C"	
Add Comments		
Download Spell		Send Close

- 8. If desired, select an **Email Template** from the drop-down list. The selected template appears in the *Message* field.
- 9. Use the text editor to compose or edit the Message content.
- 10. Click the **Return Receipt** checkbox to prompt the system to send a Return Receipt.

# (!!) Note: A return receipt is a message indicating that the message recipient has opened the message.

- 11. Enter any **Comments** in the field, if desired.
- 12. Click the *Attachments* tab and click the checkbox adjacent the documents you want to deliver.
- (!!) Note: If desired, you can download the documents on the Deliver Documents screen. In the Attachments tab, click the checkbox adjacent the documents and then click Download.
- 13. Click Send. The window closes, and the document delivery message is sent to the recipient.

14. Click **Close Correspondence**. The window closes and the closed date of the case folder is updated to reflect the date entered in the Correspondence Closed Date field. The Case Folder is now in Closed status.

### 4.3.2 Closing Without Documents in the Attachments Tab

To close a case folder:

1. Navigate to the case folder. Select **Close** from the Actions drop-down list.



### (!!) Note: Case Closing eligibility and actions are dependent upon an organizations workflow.

2. The Close Correspondence screen appears.



3. The **Correspondence Closed Date** field is automatically populated with today's date. If necessary, alter this field to capture the Correspondence Closed Date.



4. You may send an email notification alongside the case folder closing notifications by clicking the **Send Email Notification** tab. Use the **To/CC/BCC** fields to configure the message recipients. Use the text editor to update the prepopulated message template.

CIOSE CORRE	spondence <sup>atory</sup>		
Closed Date	Send Email Notification	Journal Entry Comments	
To Cc Bcc Subject Message A ▼ TI ▼ II ▼ II ▼	eCase Folder [Correspond B I U S x 66 - - h a Z	dence Tracking System.Folder ID] - Closed $G_2 = x^2$ $A \gg \Pi = \Xi = \Xi$	
Dear [Cor Folder <b>[C</b> <b>Cynthia I</b> message <b>Message</b>	rrespondence Tracking Syste orrespondence Tracking S Dillow on [Correspondence below while folder.	em.FOLDER_OWNER_NAME], ystem.Folder ID] has been closed by e Tracking System.CLOSED_DATE].See the	

5. Optionally, click the **Journal Entry/Comments** tab to record any Closing Journal Entry Comments. Use the text editor to record the journal entry comments. Journal Entries/Comments added using this screen are recorded in the Journal Entries/Comments tab after closing the case folder.

(!!) Note: You can upload any attachments to this Journal Entry by clicking Choose Files and selecting an attachment file.

6. After the content in the Send Email Notification and Journal Entry Comments tabs are configured, click **Close Correspondence**.



- 7. A confirmation message appears. Click **OK** to close the Correspondence.
- 8. After clicking **OK**, the window closes, and the case folder refreshes. The case folder is now in *Closed* status.

Reports provide detailed information about different folders and tasks that can be used to track information by date or period, contact information, users working on folders, and task details under each folder.

You can also:

- Generate reports automatically at scheduled times,
- Print reports,
- Share reports via email;
- Export reports in various formats (including MS Word, Excel, HTML, and CSV)
- Filter the information as needed.
- Create custom reports to show specific information as needed.

In this application, Reports can be executed by selecting **Reports** from the Launch Pad.



# 5.1 Reports Interface

The Reports interface and functionality is captured below:

Home / Reports List	Ctions - Group By: Nor	ne 🗸	None -	G
Alame	Туре	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
Example Report	Folder Report	Randall Hamm	11/22/2021 12:26:30 PM	No
Pending Yellow Tickets and Replies	Correspondence Tracking		11/29/2021 10:17:37 AM	No
Show: 20 🗢	Total number of Reports: 2			1

Ref	Feature	Description
A	Reports List	The workspace displays a list of all reports available to you in this eCASE application. This list includes details, such as the report <i>Name</i> , <i>Type</i> , and <i>Scheduled</i> status, as configured by your administrator.
В	Run	Click this button to run a report selected from the <i>Reports List</i> .
С	Scheduled Reports	View of list of scheduled reports, which are predefined reports that are run at user-defined times according to your needs.
D	New	Create a new report from application data using criteria available to you. There are options to run a <b>Folder Report</b> , <b>Query Report</b> , <b>Task Report</b> , <b>Processing Times Report</b> , <b>Volume Report</b> , or <b>Application Report</b> .
E	Actions	Use the drop-down list to take actions on a report selected from the Reports List. There are options to <b>Edit</b> an existing report, <b>Delete</b> a report, <b>Share Report</b> with others, or <b>Add to</b> <b>Favorites</b> to add this report to the <i>Favorites</i> widget on the <i>Home Screen</i> .
F	Group By	Use the drop-down list to group the <i>Reports List</i> according to their attributes. There are options to group by report <b>Type</b> or who the report was <b>Modified By</b> .
G	Filter	Use the <i>Filter</i> options to filter by the report <b>Name</b> , <b>Type</b> , or who the report was <b>Modified By</b> . Enter specific terms in the text field and click the <b>Filter</b> to view filtered reports.

# 5.2 Run a Report

To run a preconfigured report:

1. Log in to the application and click **Reports** from the Launch Pad.



2. The page refreshes to display the *Report List*. Select a report from the list and click **Run**.

Name	Туре	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
Congressional Request	Folder Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No
Correspondence	Folder Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No
New Sample Custom Report	Folder Report	Josh Moyer	12/06/2021 4:24:39 PM	No
Processing Report	Processing Times Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No

3. The page refreshes to display a document reporting the user selected fields.

The image below displays an annotated version of a report output. A set of **(A) action buttons** appear at the top of the page, allowing you to perform actions directly upon the report results. Your Organization Name, type of report, name of report, and date information appear in the **(B)** *Report header*. The **(C)** *Results* of the report are displayed in the reports workspace. Click a **(D)** *page number* to view a different page of the report results.

	Corr	AINS Inc espondences Report tion Sample Custom Rep	B		Date: 12/16/202 Time: 10:18 AM
Action Office	Correspondence ID	Case Type	Task Name	Created Date	Correspondence Status
HQ - Headquarters	2020-CORS-00001	Correspondence(Routing List)	2020-T-10_0	08/19/2020	Not Started
HQ - Headquarters	2020-CC-00001	Correspondence(Adhoc)	-	08/19/2020	Open
HQ - Headquarters	2020-CORS-00002	Correspondence(Routing	Review and Approve by Dept Sec	08/20/2020	In Progress
HQ - Headquarters	2020-CC-00002	Co. pondence(Adhoc)	-	08/20/2020	Open
HQ - Headquarters	2020-CORS-00003	Correspondence(Routing List)		08/20/2020	Not Started
Africa - Bureau for Africa	2020-WHC-00001	Correspondence(Workflow)	E. Close Correspondence	08/20/2020	In Progress
CFOI - Center for Faith and Opportunity Initiatives	2020-WHC-00002	Correspondence(Workflow)	B. Draft Response	08/21/2020	In Progress

# 5.2.1 Print/Print All

After running a report, there are menu options allowing you to print the results of the report. To Print/Print All, click either the **Print** or **Print All** buttons. The *Print* interface appears:

			NRC UAT Correspondences - Report All Correspondence		Date: 12/17/202 Time: 10:47:19 AM		Destination		Save as PDF
Ac	ction Office	Case Type	Correspondence ID	Correspondence Type	Correspondence Status		Pages	Al	l
AIG	GA - AIGA	Correspondence	2021-CC-00001	Reg Review	Completed Late				
010	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00002	Reg Review	Completed Late		Pages per sheet	1	
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00003	Reg Review	Completed Late				
OIO	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00004	Reg Review	Completed Late				
OIC	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00005	Congressional	Completed Late		Margine	De	fault
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00006	Reg Review	Completed Late		margino		- Tuun
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00007	OIG	Completed Late				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00008	Other	Completed Late		0-1		
RM	10S - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00009	Reg Review	In Progress		options	$\sim$	Headers and rooter
RM	10S - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00010	OMB	Completed Late			_	
RM	IOS - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00011	Other	In Progress				Background graphi
RM	IOS - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00012	Other	Completed Late				
RM	IOS - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00013	Other	Completed Late				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00014	CIGIE	Completed Late				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00015	CIGIE	In Progress				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00016	CIGIE	Completed Early				
RM	10S - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00017	OIG	Open				
OIO	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00018	OIG	In Progress				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00021	Reg Review	Completed Early				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00022	Reg Review	Open				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00023	Reg Review	In Progress				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00024	Reg Review	Completed Early				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00025	Reg Review	Completed Early				
010	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00026	Reg Review	Completed Early				
010	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00027	Reg Review	In Progress				
OIO	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00028	Reg Review	In Progress				
010	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00029	Congressional	In Progress				
RM	IOS - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00030	Other	In Progress				
RM	IOS - RMOS	Correspondence	2021-CC-00031	CIGIE	In Progress				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00032	CIGIE	Open				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00033	CIGIE	In Progress				
010	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00034	Congressional	In Progress				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00035	Other	In Progress				
OIC	G - 0IG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00036	Other	In Progress				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00037	OIG	In Progress				
OIO	G - OIG	Correspondence	2021-CC-00038	CIGIE	In Progress				

Use the options here to configure the printed report output, including the *Destination*, *Pages*, and other *Options*. Click **Save** to print the selected pages.

## 5.2.2 Export (Save or Email)

After running a report, there are menu options allowing you to export the results of the report. To export a report, click the **Export** button. The *Export Report* interface appears as shown below:



You have options to select the *Export Report* output type, and determine the *Page Range*. For export, there are options to **Email** the report as an attachment, or **Save** the report to your desktop.

If you select to **Email** the report, the *Email Report* interface appears as shown below:

#### Export Report

om* admin@ainsUAI.com   From: OIG - OIG   (Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses)   Image: Correspondences_Report   (Correspondences_Report.xlsx   essage:     Image: Correspondences_Report.xlsx     Image: Correspondences_Report.xlsx     Image: Correspondences_Report.xlsx	-												-					
Image: Sector of the secto	om*	ad	min@a	ainsUA	AT.com								Fro	m:	OIG	6 - OIG		
[Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]         [Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]         [Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]         [Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]         now Bcc:       □         ubject:       Correspondences_Report.xlsx         lessage:       □         A + Tl + B       I       U       S       x₂       x²       Image: second	To*																	
Correspondences_Report         Correspondences_Report.xlsx         essage:         A * Tl * B       I       U       S       x2       A       I * E * E E E E 66 *         % E       -       k       Z       2       C       C	_	[Note:	To ente	er mult	iple reci	pients u	ise a coi	mma or	semi-c	olon as	a separa	tor with	NO SP/	ACES b	etween	email a	ddresses]	
[Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a separator with NO SPACES between email addresses]         how Bcc:         ubject:         Correspondences_Report.xlsx         lessage:         A + T! + B       I       U       S       x₂       X²       Image: Time time time time time time time time t	Cc*																	
how Bc: ubject: Correspondences_Report. Correspondences_Report. Markow TI $\sim$ B I U S $x_2$ $x^2$ $ \sim$ $ \ T \sim E \sim E = E = E = E = E$		[Note:	To ente	er mult	iple reci	pients u	ise a co	mma or	semi-c	olon as	a separa	tor with	NO SP	ACES b	etween	email a	addresses]	
ubject: Correspondences_Report Correspondences_Report.xlsx Message: $A \rightarrow T! \rightarrow B$ I U $\Rightarrow x_2 x^2$ $\bullet  ?  \P \rightarrow E \rightarrow E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E $	how Bo	CC:																
abject: Correspondences_Report Correspondences_Report.xlsx essage: $A \leftarrow Tl \leftarrow B  I  U  \Leftrightarrow  x_2  x^2  \blacklozenge  ?  \P \leftarrow \blacksquare \leftarrow \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare  \blacksquare$																		
ubject:       Correspondences_Report         Correspondences_Report.xlsx         Message:         A $\cdot$ T! $\cdot$ B       I       U       S       x <sub>2</sub> x <sup>2</sup> Image: Note: Not																		
Correspondences_Report.xIsx Message: $A \rightarrow TI \rightarrow B$ $I \ U \ S \ x_2 \ x^2$ $\bullet \ \gamma \rightarrow \ \P \rightarrow \Xi \ \Xi \ \Xi \ G \ G \rightarrow \ C$	ubject:			Corr	respond	lences	Repor	t										
A $\mathbf{v}$ TI $\mathbf{v}$ B I U S $\mathbf{x}_2$ $\mathbf{x}^2$ $0$ $\mathbf{v}$ $1$ $\mathbf{v}$ $\mathbf{E}$ $\mathbf{v}$ $\mathbf{E}$	ı			Corre	snonde	inces R	eport x	lsx										
A $\mathbf{\tau}$ Ti $\mathbf{v}$ B       I       U       S $\mathbf{x}_2$ $\mathbf{z}^2$ $\boldsymbol{\phi}$ $\boldsymbol{\eta}$ $\mathbf{\tau}$ $\mathbf{H}$ $\mathbf{E}$ $\mathbf$				cone	sponde		cporax											
Ar       Tir       B       I       U       S $x_2$ $x^2$ $\phi$ $\gamma$ r $\P$ r $\equiv$ $\equiv$ $\equiv$ $\equiv$ $=$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\gamma$ r $\eta$ r $\equiv$ $\equiv$ $\equiv$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\gamma$ r $\eta$ r $e$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\phi$ $\gamma$ r $\eta$ r $q$ r $\phi$	ressage	e:																
% 🖬 – 🖡 Ø 2 ⊕ ? ♡ C			D	I	U	<del>S</del>	<b>X</b> <sub>2</sub>	x²	٥	<b>%</b> -	¶-	≣	Ħ	≔	<u>.</u>		- 22	
	A • 7	Ti ▼	D															
	A - 7	Ti 🕶	D _	k	_	2	- ₽	?	C	C								
	A ▼ 7 %	Ti ▼ I	- thing	k		2	8	?	C	G								
	A - S % Type s	T! <del>-</del> ™	D - thing	k		1	₽	?	C'	C								
	A - 7	T! <del>-</del> ™	D thing	k		2	₽	?	C	C								
	A - 7	TI ▼	b - thing	k	6	2	0	?	C	C								
	A - 7	Ti ▼ ■ some	b thing	k		2	0	?	C	C								

Here you can configure the recipients and message contents, then click **Send** to send the report.

# 5.3 Create a Custom Report

Complete the steps below to create a custom report in eCASE Correspondence Tracking:

- 1. Select **Reports** from the Launch Pad.
- 2. From the *Reports* screen, click **New** to open the *New Report* screen.

ome / Reports List				
	Group By	v: None v	None -	T
Name	Туре	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
Example Report	Folder Report	Randall Hamm	11/22/2021 12:26:30 PM	No
Pending Yellow Tickets and Replies	Correspondence Tracking		11/29/2021 10:17:37 AM	No
Show: 20 🗢	Total number of Reports: 2			1

3. The *New Report* screen appears. Select a type of report to create from the *Report Type* dropdown list, then click **OK**:

New Report		Х
Report Type	Task Report	~
Note: Please choose a	report type to create report.	
	ок	Close

4. The screen refreshes and the report criteria screen appears for you to customize this report. The fields available on this screen are specific to your application and the selected Report Type, but may include *Folder Criteria*, *Fields*, *Output Table Properties*, *Date Criteria* or more. Enter the search criteria in the fields provided.

Home / Reports List / Tasks Report				
▶ Run 🖺 Save 🖺 Save As ⊀ Back				
Folder Criteria O				
Fields O				
Output Table Properties O				
Group By		V Decending		
Output Columns *	Available Columns	Descending +	Selected Columns	
	Acknowledgement Date Address To Addressed To Application Check Special Instructions Closed By Closed Date		Action Office Correspondence ID Case Type Task Assigned Date Task Due Date Task Name Correspondence Status	* * *
Correspondent Criteria O				
Last Name				
First Name				
Correspondent Type	[All]	~		

5. Use the Output Table Properties section to define the report output. Select entries from the Available Columns list and use the **right arrow** to move them to the Selected Columns list. Arrange the Selected Columns order by selecting an entry and using the **up and down arrows**. There are options to Group by and Sort By, and you can determine the Output Columns by moving the data you'd like displayed in the report into the Selected Columns field.

(!!) Note: Required fields are denoted with a \* red asterisk. These fields must be completed before the report can be run or saved.

6. After the report criteria is entered, you can click **Run** to view the report output, **Save As** to save this to your *Reports List* for future use, or **Save** to save changes to an existing report.

# 5.4 Scheduled Reports

Reports can be run on an ad hoc basis or scheduled to run on predetermined schedules. Consult the subsections below for information about scheduling reports.

## 5.4.1 Scheduled Reports Interface

To view the Report Scheduling interface:

1. Click **Reports** on the Launch Pad. The Reports List page appears.



2. Click **Scheduled Reports**. The *Report Scheduling* page appears.

Run O Scheduled Reports New	Group By: None	~	None -	٣
Name	Туре	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
Example Report	Folder No.	Randall Hamm	11/22/2021 12:26:30 PM	No
Pending Yellow Tickets and Replies	Correspondence Tracking		11/29/2021 10:17:37 AM	No
Show: 20 •	Total number of Reports: 2			

The Report Scheduling User Interface is captured below:

Ho	me / Reports List / Report Sch	eduling				
	B C + New C Edit ▷ Ope	D n Schedule Log	Clear Schedule Log	K Back None ✓		T
	Schedule Name	Description	Report Name	Last Run Date/Time	Next Run Date/Time	Active
	Example Scheduled Report		All Correspondence (Admin Admin)	11/22/2021 1:28:03 PM		Yes
	Show: 20 ♦					1

Ref	Item	Description
A	Reports List	The workspace displays a list of all reports available to you in this eCASE application. This list includes details, such as the report <i>Name</i> , <i>Description</i> , and <i>Last Run Date/Time</i> , as configured by your administrator.
В	New	Click this to create a new Scheduled Report.
С	Edit	Select an entry from the Reports List and then click Edit to update the parameters of the scheduled report.
D	Open Schedule Log	Select an entry from the Reports List and then click Open Schedule Log to view or edit the report scheduling details.
E	Clear Schedule Log	Select an entry from the Reports List and then click Clear Schedule Log to delete the information in the schedule log.
F	Delete	Select an entry from the Reports List and then click Delete to permanently delete the scheduled report.

## 5.4.2 Create New Scheduled Report

To create a new Scheduled Report:

- 1. Log in to the application and click **Reports** on the Launch Pad. The Reports List page appears.
- 2. Click **Scheduled Reports**. The *Reports Scheduling* page appears.

▶ Run O Scheduled Reports	w 👌 Actions 🗸	Group By: None	~	None -	T
Name	Туре	Modified	Ву	Modified Date	Scheduled
Example Report	Folder Report	Randall H	amm	11/22/2021 12:26:30 PM	No
Pending Yellow Tickets and Replies	respondenc	e Tracking		11/29/2021 10:17:37 AM	No
Show: 20 🗢	Total numb	per of Reports: 2			1

3. Click **New Scheduled Report**. The *Report Scheduling* page appears.

Home / Reports List / Report Scheduling							
+ New     IP Edit     ▷ Open Schedule Log     Image: Delete     Image: Back     None →							
Schedule Name	Description	Report Name	Last Run Date/Time	Next Run Date/Time	Active		
Example Scheduled Report		All Correspondence (Admin Admin)	11/22/2021 1:28:03 PM		Yes		
Show: 20 <b>≑</b>					1		

4. Select the **Report Type** from the drop-down list.

### (!!) Note: This selection may change the fields available on the Report Scheduling page.

	Reports List / Report Scheduling / Re	port Scheduling
	🖺 Save < Back	
	Note: * nolds are mandatory	
8		
Ē	Report Based On 🧿	
		<b>\</b>
	Report Type *	Correspondences Report ~
		Correspondences Report
	Select Search Criteria*	Query Report
		Processing Times Report
		Volume Report
Ø	Schedule Information	Application Reports
	Schedule Name*	

- 5. Select the Search Criteria from the drop-down list.
- 6. Enter the **Schedule Name** in the field.
- 7. If desired, enter a **description** for the scheduled report in the field.
- 8. Use the date and time pickers to select the **Start Date/Time**.
- (!!) Note: This is the date and time that the first scheduled report is run.

Start Date/Time*	12/1/2021		✓ 2 Min ✓	
Repeat for every*	Minutes	1 AM 2 AM	~	
End	After	3 AM 4 AM 5 AM	times	
Execute only on Business Days	Deactivate on Failure	6 AM 7 AM 8 AM 9 AM		Inactive
Email Information O		10 AM 11 AM 12 PM		
From*	nohin62227@mainctu.com	1 PM 2 PM 3 PM		×
[Note: To enter multiple recipients use a comma or semi-colon as a sep To*	parator with NO SPACES between e	email a 5 PM 6 PM 7 PM		×

- 9. Select the repetition interval from the **Repeat for Every** fields. Enter a **value** in the numeric field, and then select the **length of time** from the drop-down list.
- 10. Optionally, determine when the scheduled report will end by entering the **number of times the report will run** in the *End After* field.
- 11. You can select the **Execute only on Business Days** checkbox to limit the report to only being run on Business Days.
- 12. You can select the **Deactivate on Failure** checkbox to deactivate the report if it the job fails to run once.
- 13. You can select the Inactive checkbox to make the scheduled report inactive.
- 14. In the *Email Information* workspace, enter any *recipients' email addresses* in the To and CC fields.
- 15. Enter the name for the report attachment file in the Attachment Name field.
- 16. Select the file format for the report from the Format drop-down list.
- 17. Enter the **subject** of the email in the field.

D)

18. If desired, click **Insert Fields** and select any preconfigured fields to include with the message.



19. Use the text editor to compose the content of the email message containing the report file.

#### 20. Click Save.



The report is run automatically using the report parameters configured in this procedure.

## 5.4.3 View/Clear Schedule Log

If any scheduled jobs have been configured, they are listed in the *Report Scheduling* workspace. To view/clear the scheduled report log:

1. Navigate to the Report Scheduling page and select the report from the workspace and click **Open Schedule Log**. The page refreshes to display any previously initiated jobs.

Date-Time	Status			
11/22/2021 1:28:04 PM	Success(Completed)			
11/22/2021 1:28:03 PM	Success(Started)			
Show: 20 🗢		1		

2. If any scheduled jobs have been configured, they are listed in the *Report Scheduling* workspace. To clear the schedule log, select a scheduled report from the workspace and click **Clear Schedule Log**.

Но	me / Reports List / Report Sch	eduling				
	+ New 🕼 Edit 🕞 Ope	n Schedule Log	🗙 Clear Schedule Log 🔊 🛍 Delete	▲ Back None		T
	Schedule Name	Description	Report Name	Last Run Date/Time	Next Run Date/Time	Active
	Example Scheduled Report		All Correspondence (Admin Admin)	11/22/2021 1:28:03 PM		Yes
	Show: 20 ♠					1

- 3. A confirmation window appears, asking you if you are sure you want to clear the log. Click **OK** to clear the log.
- 4. The page refreshes to display the *Reports Scheduling* workspace, and the selected Schedule Log is cleared.

# 5.5 Actions

The following subsections describe some actions you can perform on reports.



### 5.5.1 Edit Report

To edit a report, select a report from the *Reports List* and click **Edit** to open the report for editing.

Home / Reports List					
▶ ◎ +	€ •	Group By:	None ~	None -	T
Name	Edit 👆	it Report De	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
Example Report	Delete	Folder Report	Randall Hamm	11/22/2021 12:26:30 PM	No
Pending Yellow Ticl	Share Report Add to Favorites	Correspondence Tracking		11/29/2021 10:17:37 AM	No
Show: 20 🗢		Total number of Reports: 2			1

The page refreshes to display the selected report criteria. Be sure to click **Save** to retain any changes made to the report.

## 5.5.2 Share Report Template

To share a report:

- 1. Click **Reports** from the Launch Pad. The Reports List appears.
- 2. Select a report from the list and select **Share** from the Actions drop-down list.

Run O Scheduled Reports + New	🖒 Actions 🗸	Group By: None	∽ None -	T
Name	Edit	Modified By	Modified Date	Scheduled
All Correspondence	Delete	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No
All Open Tasks Dashboard	Share Report	Admin Admin	12/06/2021 10:27:48 AM	No
All Open Tasks Report	Add to Pavonites	Admin Admin	12/06/2021 10:29:01 AM	No
All Workflow Folders	Folder Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No
Congressional Request	Folder Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No
Correspondence	Folder Report	Admin Admin	09/08/2021 7:11:50 PM	No

3. The *Share Report Template* window appears. If no users are present in the *Share Report* workspace, click **Add**.

(!!) Note: If users have already been added to the Share Report workspace, select the user (s) and then click Add.

Share Repo	ort		
Name -		T	
	Name		Туре
		No Records found	
Show: 200 ¢			
Remove	1		Add Close

4. The window refreshes to display the *Add Users/Groups* workspace. Click the **lookup** tool to select the users/groups to share the report results with.



5. The workspace refreshes and displays a list of roles you can select to share the report results. Click the **checkboxes** next to the recipients you'd like to add.

Select	an option				
All 🗸					<b>×</b> 0
	Name	Туре	Email		
	Admin	Group			
	Admin Admin	User	admin@ainsUAT.com		
	AGENT	Group			
	AIG-ITACCI	Group			
	AIGI	Group			
	Analyst	Group			
	ASAC	Group			
	Dillow	User	cdillow@ains.com		
	Contributor	Group			
	Counsel	Group			
	DAIGI	Group			
	DIG	Group			
0 item	(s) selected. Maximum of 25 item(s) are allowed to be selected.			Page 1	~
				ок	Cancel

(!!) Note: You can select multiple recipients.

6. Click **OK**. The selected Users/Groups appear in the Select Users/Groups field. Click **Add**.

Add Users/Groups		
Select Users/Groups	Admin; Admin Admin;	٩
Back		Add Elose

7. The workspace refreshes to display the Share Report window, containing the newly added user/groups. Review the list recipients and use the Add or Remove buttons to add/remove additional recipients.

After adding the users to receive the completed report, you must run the report to create an output and share it with the selected recipients.

### 5.5.3 Add Report to Favorites

To add a report to your Favorites tile on the Home Screen:

- 1. Click **Reports** on the Launch Pad. The *Reports List* page appears.
- 2. Select a report from the workspace, and then select **Add to Favorites** from the *Actions* drop-down list.

Scheduled Reports	+ New 🖒 Actions -
Group By: None	Edit
	Delete
Name	Share Report
Example Report	Folder Report Add to Favorites
Pending Yellow Tickets and Replies	Correspondence Tracking

3. The *Add To Favorites* window appears. Select either **Existing Group** or **New Group** from the Folder drop-down list.

(!!) Note: Selecting New Group prompts the window to refresh to display a blank field adjacent the Folder drop-down list. Enter the name for this new Group in the field.

# 6 eCASE Search Capabilities

eCASE offers robust search capabilities. See the subsections below for details on searching eCASE.

# 6.1 Quick Search

The Quick Search feature allows you to quickly search and access correspondence files, contacts, or documents.



To perform a Quick Search:

1. Using the *Search* drop-down list (located left of the *Search* text box), select the search scope. For example, to search for a specific correspondence case folder, select **Correspondence** from the drop-down.

(!!) Note: eCASE Administrators can configure different search scopes using any searchable fields.

2. Enter the **search criteria** in the *Search* field. For example, when searching for a correspondence, search for criteria such as correspondence ID, solicitation number, etc.

(!!) Note: You can enter a key word to perform a word search on all searchable fields of the correspondence.

3. Click the Lookup icon, highlighted below. The Search Results screen appears and displays the results of the search.

e(	CASE <sup>®</sup> Corresponde	ence Tracking	Contacts 🕶	Sample Text	( Q	 ≜ -	? -
ß	Main Menu	Quick Links		/			l
	Inbox	Total Tasks in Inbox			117		- 11
	Correspondents	Tasks Arrived Today			0		- 11
6	correspondents	Tasks Due Today			1		
Ē	Reports	Tasks Overdue			106		- 15
_	Mass Malling	FYI Copies			1		
Mass Mailing		My Correspondences			140		
	Settings						

(!!) Note: You can use the Quick Search for any search scopes configured by your administrator.

# 6.2 Search Correspondences

The Search Correspondences feature allows you to search for correspondence files using searchable fields available in the application, directly from the Launch Pad.

<b>e</b> (	$CASE^\circ$ Correspond				
ß	Main Menu				
	Search				
	Search Correspondences				
	Search Documents				
	Boolean Search				
	New				
	Inbox				
	Correspondents				
	Reports				
$\succ$	Mass Mailing				
	Settings				

1. Select Search > Search Correspondences. The Search Correspondence page appears. (!!) Note: You can change the columns displayed in search results with the Selected Columns option at the bottom of the Search Correspondences screen.

- 2. Select your search criteria using the available fields.
- 3. Click Search. The Search Results window appears as shown below:

#### eCASE Search Capabilities

Но	me / Search C	Correspondence: <b>N</b>	Ay Favorite Search Criteria	a / Corresponder	nces Search R	esult			
	<ul> <li>▷ Open</li> <li>◇ Actions ▼</li> <li>◇ Logs ▼</li> <li>✓ Back</li> </ul>			Group By:	Group By: [None • ]				
	Action Office	Correspondence ID	Case Type	Task Name	Created Date	Task Assigned Date	Task Due Date	Correspondence Status	Overall Due Date
	HQ - Headquarters	2021-WHC- 00121	Correspondence(Workflow)		12/15/2021			Completed Late	12/27/2021 12:00:00 AM
	HQ - Headquarters	2021-WHC- 00120	Correspondence(Workflow)	A. Direct Correspondence	12/14/2021	12/14/2021	12/29/2021	In Progress	12/26/2021 12:00:00 AM(-11)
	HQ - Headquarters	2021-WHC- 00119	Correspondence(Workflow)	C. Directorate Clearance	12/13/2021	12/14/2021		Suspended	12/25/2021 12:00:00 AM(-12)

# 6.3 Full Text Search

This feature allows you to search for documents in a correspondence file using text.

- 1. Select Search > Search Correspondence.
- 2. In the All of these words field, enter any word related to the case:

1	Document Search O	
	All of these words	
	Any of these words	
	Correspondence ID	
	The exact phrase	
	None of these words	
	File types	Enter commo or dat conserted values, ownmales does not for does, not When using the
		types, enter one of the other document search fields too.

### 3. Click Search.

(!!) Note: You can also use the other options presented to conduct a search. Options include: The exact phrase, Any of these words, None of these words, and Correspondence ID.

# 6.4 Date Criteria Search

This feature allows you to search correspondence using a specific date or date range.

- 1. Select Search > Search Correspondence.
- 2. In the *Created Date* section, click the **calendar** icon next to the *From Date* radio button and select a date.

#### eCASE Search Capabilities

Date Criteria O				
Created Date	From		то	
	Select	Current Day (Today)	~	
	Elapsed Days	= •		
Workflow Start Date	From		то	-
	Select	Current Day (Today)	~	
	Elapsed Days	= *		

- 3. In the *To Date* section, click on the **calendar** icon and select a date.
- 4. Click Search.

(!!) Note: You can also use the other options presented to complete a search, including Created Date, Workflow Start Date, Received Date, Closed Date, Priority Code, Response Due Date, and Secondary Due Date.

Add To Favo Note: * fields are manda	rites <sup>tory</sup>			
Folder:	Existing Group	~	[Select Group]	~
Display Name*:	Example Report			
Expiration Date:				Ê
Spell			Save	Close

- 5. Select a Group from the drop-down list or use the free text field to enter a name for the new folder.
- 6. Select an **Expiration Date** using the date picker.
- 7. Click **Save**. The window closes, and the report is added to the designated group.

Favorites		
My Favorites		
2020-CORS-00001		
Correspondence		